AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Monday, 11th February, 2008, at 12.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
Darent Room - Sessions House, County
Hall, Maidstone
Telephone (01622) 694342
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

Membership: Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther (Vice-Chairman), Mr |
S Chittenden, Mr T Gates and Mr I T N Jones.

Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda for this meeting

Application to register land at Valley Road, Barham as a new Village Green.
(Pages 1 -18)

Application to register land at Huntington Road, Coxheath as a new Village Green.
(Pages 19 - 38)

Other Items which the Chairman decides are urgent

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership
(01622) 694002

Friday, 1 February 2008



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3
Item 3

Application to register land at Valley Road, Barham (Nr. Canterbury)
as a new Village Green

A report by Divisional Director, Environment and Waste to the Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Monday 11" February 2008.

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that
the application to register the land at Valley Road, Barham has been accepted, and
that the land subject to the application be formally registered as a Village Green.

Local Members: Mr. M. Northey Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Valley Road,
Barham as a new Village Green from the Barham Parish Council (“the applicant”)
who own the land in question. The application, dated 28" August 2007, was
allocated the application number 593. A plan of the site is shown on Appendix A
to this report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. Since 6™ April 2007, applications to register new Village Greens are made under
section 15 of the Commons Act 2006: applications prior to this date were made
under section 13 of the Commons Registration Act 1965, which has now been
repealed (except for outstanding applications that were made under the 1965
Act).

3. Traditionally, village greens derive from customary law and until recently it was
only possible to register land as a new village green where certain qualifying
criteria were met: i.e. where it could be shown that the land in question had been
used ‘as of right’ for recreational purposes by the local residents for a period of at
least 20 years.

4. However, a new provision has been introduced by the Commons Act 2006 which
enables the owner of any land to apply to voluntarily register the land as a new
Village Green without having to meet the qualifying criteria. Section 15 states:

“(8) The owner of any land may apply to the Commons Registration Authority
to register the land as a town or village green.

(9) An application under subsection (8) may only be made with the consent of
any relevant leaseholder of, and the proprietor of any relevant charge over,
the land.”

5. Land which is voluntarily registered as a Village Green under section 15(8) of the

Commons Act 2006 enjoys the same level of statutory protection as that of all
other registered greens and local people will have a guaranteed right to use the

Padél1



land for informal recreational purposes in perpetuity. This means that once the
land is registered it cannot be removed from the Register (other than by statutory
process) and must be kept free of development or other encroachments.

6. The procedure for such applications is very simple. Once the application has
been made, there is no requirement for the County Council to undertake a public
consultation exercise, to advertise the proposal or even to consider the merits of
the application. Provided that the County Council is satisfied that the applicant is
the owner of the land and that any necessary consents have been obtained (e.g.
from a tenant or the owner of a relevant charge), then it is under a duty to grant
the application and register the land as a Village Green.

The Case

Description of the land

7. The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of an
area of grassy, unenclosed open space approximately 1.3 acres (0.5 ha) in size
situated in the centre of the village of Barham. The land is equipped with a
number of benches and litter bins, a parish sign as well as an informal football
pitch complete with goal posts, which all indicate that the land is already in
general recreational use. Photographs of the site are attached at Appendix C.

Ownership of the land

8. The Parish Council has owned the land since 1956 when it was bequeathed to
the Council by way of a Deed of Gift from the previous owner, Mr. Louis Charles
Groombridge ‘in consideration of his desire to provide land for the recreation of
the children in particular and also the residents in the parish of Barhan'.

9. On receipt of the application, a Land Registry search was undertaken which
confirmed the registered ownership of the land by the Barham Parish Council
(copy attached at Appendix D).

10.The search also revealed a relevant charge relating to a private right of way with
a width of 20ft running from Barham Street to a field along the easternmost edge
of the land. The owner of the charge has been contacted and is in agreement with
the proposal (letter of consent attached at Appendix E).

The ‘locality’

11.DEFRA’s view is that once land is registered as a Village Green, only the
residents of the locality have the legal right to use the land for the purposes of
lawful sports and pastimes. It is therefore necessary to identify the locality in
which the users of the land reside. At Part 6 of the application, the locality is
defined as ‘opposite school, Valley Road, Barham, Canterbury, Kent’. This
appears to be more of a description of the location of the land rather than of
‘locality’ in the sense intended by the Commons Act 2006.

Feide 2



12.A locality for these purposes normally consists of a recognised administrative
area (e.g. civil parish or electoral ward) or a cohesive entity (such as a village or
housing estate). Since the application has been made by Barham Parish Council,
it seems appropriate that the locality should therefore be the parish of Barham so
that all of the residents of the village have the legal right to use the land. This
certainly appears to be what was intended by the 1956 Deed of Gift.

Conclusion

13.1 have concluded that all the necessary criteria concerning the voluntary
registration of the land as a Village Green have been met.

Recommendations
14.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the application to

register the land at Valley Road, Barham has been accepted, and that the land
subject to the application be formally registered as a Village Green.

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent.gov.uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221628 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C — Photographs of the application site

APPENDIX D - Official copy of register of title from Land Registry
APPENDIX E — Letter of consent from Barham Court Farms

Page33




620600
]

I et

APPENDIX A:
Plan showing the application site (land at
Valley Road, Barham)

° =
=3 =
=] =
2 2
" | Riverside
Pilgrims)| % s
g
5 4 3
.| Cottage L g |
= | i = S
= =1 B e 0 =
| Portland e i | SRR 1
i \ House | Bt -4 e T i [
' . e e Ay - '
1 I
o A 620800 77
N
Land subject to
W e | Village Green application

at Valley Road, Barham

= (Nr. Canterbury)

Scale 1:1250

County
Council

Fide 4




Appendix B

Ca U TR g P W

Commons Act 2006: Section 15

Copy of application form

Application for the registration o1 ianu as a 1vwi v
Village Green

Official stamp of registration authority - —
indicating valid date of receipt: Application Mimbes

s

REGISTRAT ./ -
. 03 SEP 2007

Register unit No(s):

5973 (HIUBMAL UN)

VG number allocated at registration:

|

« Al applicants should complete questions 1-6 and 10-11.

(CRA to complete only if application is successful)

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Guidance Notes for the completion of an Application for the Registration of
land as a Town or Village Green’ and to note the following:

« Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete questions 7-8.
Section 15(1) enables any person to apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in section
15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

« Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addtion, complete question 9.

O

Insert name of
registration
authory.

To the

1. Registration Authority

Kent CounTty Guncil

Pagé5




Note 2

If there is more than
one applicant, list all
names. Please use a
separate sheet if
nacessary. State the
full tile of the
organisation i a body
corporate or
unincorporate.

If question 3 is not
completed all _
correspondence and
notices will be sent to
the first named
applicart.

Note 3

This question should
be completed if a
sofickor is instructed
for the purposes of the
application. if so all
correspondence and
notices will be sent to
the person or firm
.named here.

2. Name and address of the applicant

Name:

Raenam eacisy Coundil

Full postal address:

s

THE CcLelk To THE Councll
4 VRezLiné dDanE
SHEPRERDSWELL
Dev el KeENT

Postcode (TS T7L.8

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax humber.
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

3. Name and address of solicitor, if any

Name:

TRNET eVIINS

Firm:

Mol

Mow LC

Full postal address:

TRaeaLGEAL Hovse
Golown ReoAd
WRITEELD

Devet 3 ke~

Postcode CT 16 30N

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

o1y 2733

o130y 373355

A)GME ; Covsins @ Mowll, Co.vk

Fife 6




Note 4

For further advice on
the criteria and
qualifying dates for
registration please see
section 4 of the
Guidance Notes.

b" Section 15(6)
enables any period of
statutory closure
where access fo the
land is denied to be
disregarded in
determining the 20
year period.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your land
please tick this box and move to question 5.

Application made under section 15(8):

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick one of
the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and qualifying
criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies:

[]

B

Section 15(3) applies:

u

If section 15(3) or (4) applies please indicate the date on which you consider
that use as of right ended.

Section 15(4) applies:

If section 15(6)* applies please indicate the period of statutory closure (if
any) which needs to be disregarded.

Page’7




Note 5

The accompanying
map must be at a
scale of af least

1.2 500 and show the
fand by distinctive
colouring to enable fo
it to be clearly
identiied.

P* Only complete ¥ the
fand is aiready
registered as common
fand.

Note 6

It may be possible fo
indicate the locality of
the green by reference
to an administrative
area, such as a pansh
or electoral ward, o
other area sufficiently
defined by name (such
as a village or streef).
If this is nof possible a
map should be
provided on which
locality or
neighbourhood is
marked clearly.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land In respect of which
application for registration is made

Name by which usually known:

THRE vilacé GREEV
Caenam

Location:
East Sine of Vvalsy &OGDJ @a(z,mm)
CanTECQUAY | WENT

Shown in colour on the map which is marked and attached to the statutory
declaration.

Common land register unit number (if relevant) *

6. Locallty or neighbourhood within a localty In respect of which the
application is made

Please show the locality or neighbourhood within the locality to which the
claimed green relates, either by writing the administrative area or
geographical area by name below, or by attaching a map on which the area is
clearly marked:

OppasiTe SCHeol
vatiey QReed
@?\(ZHP.M/ (aNTeR Ry
WKENT

Tick here if map attached: D

Fife 8




»

Note 7

Applicants shouid
provide a summary of
the case for
registration here and
enclose a separate full
statement and all other
evidence including any
witness statements in
support of the
application.

This information is not
needed if a landowner
is applying to register
the land as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a town or village
green

Pag&?9




Note 8

sheet i necessary.

reference fo title

of title held by the
Land Registry.

If no one has been
identified in this
section you shoulkd
write “none”

This information is not

is applying to register
the iand as a green
.under section 15(8).

Note 9

List aff such
daciarations that
accompany the
application. If none is
required, wre “none”.
This information is not
needed if an
appiication is being
made to register the
land as a green under
section 15(1).

¢

Note 10
List all supporting
documents and maps

accompanying the
application. if none,
write “none”

Please use a separate
sheet ¥ necessary.

Where relevant include
numbers in the register

needed if a landowner

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant belleves to be

Please use a separate | an owner, lessee, tenant or occupler of any part of the land claimed to

be atown or village green

WA

9. Voluntary registration - declarations of consent from ‘relevant
leaseholder’, and of the proprietor of any ‘relevant charge’ over the land

AR

L .

10. Supporting documentation

lopy Lund &3;%-7 Eitle dankeds md 0loa

Pagtd10




11. Any other information relating to the application

Note 11

if there are any other
matters which should
be brought fo the Nong
attention of the
registration authorky
(in particular if a
person interested in
the land is expected fo
challenge the
appiication for
ragistration). Full
details shoukd be given
hera or on a separate
sheet if necessary.

®

Nofe 12 ;
The application must Date: 22|k |67
be signed by each
individuai appficant, or
by the authorised . _
officer of an applicant Signatures:
which is a body
corporate or

unincorporate. \ W .

bREM]NDER TO APPLICANT

You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all associated documentation.
Applicants should be aware that signature of the statutory declaration is a sworn statement
of truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence. The making of 2 false
statement for the purposes of this application may render the maker liable to prosecution.

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the registration authority to disciose information received from
you to others, which may include other bocal authorities, Government Departments, public bodies,
other organisations and members of the pubiic.

Patjé 1



/ ¢°§’

o
A

Q\ox |, LINDA JOAN DAVIES, of 16 The Grove, Barham, Canterbury, Kent, do solemnly and

~
o
H

sincerely declare as follows:

1. | am Chairman of Barham Parish Council and | am the person who has signed the

foregoing application.

2 The facts set out in the application form are to the best of my knowledge and belief fully
and truly stated and | am not aware of any other fact which should be brought to the
attention -of the Registration Authority as likely to affect its decision on this application,
nor of any document relating to the matter other than those (if any) mentioned in parts 10

*) and 11 of the application.

3. The map now produced as part of this declaration, marked LJD1, is the map referred to

in part 5 of the application.

4, | hereby apply under Section 15 (8) of the Commons Act 2006 to register as a green the
land indicated on the map. | declare that the land is in the ownership of Barham Parish
Council and registered at the Land Registry under title number K896798 and | declare

that no consents are required from any other party.

o

And, | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue

of the Statutory Declarations Act 1835.

Declared by the said Linda Joan Davies at

Onthe 2% dayof A4uss 2007

Before me: @

BRADLEYS

IR SOLICITORS
Jayne Sweeney LB
Sollcher

15 Castle Street, Dover, Kont CTY6 1PU

Solicitor/CommissionerforOaths

Pagk212



g 13
; s
i
| Il
| ¥
b T
mm | mm mmm
A H
I8 =HNE
& = mm Mwm
3 mm Mm W
m | I mﬁ.
wm il
1 THI T

Patjé3 3



APPENDIX C

te

ion si

Photographs of applicat

Pagtt14



Land Registry

Official copy
of register of
tlitle

A: Property register

APPENDIX D: Official copy of register of
title from Land Registry

Title number K896798 Edition date 06.02.2006

This official copy shows the entries in the register of title on
20 September 2007 at 12:09:20.

This date must be quoted as the "search from date" in any
official search application based on this copy.

The date at the beginning of an entry is the date on which
the entry was made in the register.

Issued on 20 September 2007.

Under s.67 of the Land Registration Act 2002, this copy is
admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original.
For information about the register of title see Land Registry
website www.landregistry.gov.uk or Land Registry Public
Guide 1 - A guide to the information we keep and how you
can obtain it.

This title is dealt with by Land Registry Tunbridge Wells
Office.

This register describes the land and estate comprised in the title.

KENT : CANTERBURY

1 (06.02.2006) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the
above title filed at the Registry and being Land on the east side of Valley

Road, Barham, Canterbury.

B B: Proprietorship register
This register specifies the class of title and identifies the owner. It contains any
entries that affect the right of disposal.

Title absolute

i (06.02.2006) PROPRIETOR: BARHAM PARISH COUNCIL of 8 Hazling Dane,

Shepherdswell, Dover,

Kent CT15 7LS.

2 (06.02.2006) The value stated as at 6 February 2006 was £20,000.

C: Charges register

This register contains any charges and other matters that affect the land.

8 (06.02.2006) The land is subject to the following rights reserved by a Deed
of the land in this title dated 12 May 1956 made between (1) Louis Charles
Groombridge and (2) The Parish Council Of Barham:-

i

Page 1

Patjdal5



"Except and reserved unto the Donor a right of way for all purposes twenty
feet in width along the eastern boundary of the said piece of land and
coloured brown on the said plan and connecting with Barham Street!

NOTE: The brown land referred to above is tinted blue con the title plan.

End of register

E +

Land Registry Title number K896798 ﬁg&

i Ordnance Survey map reference TR2050SE '
Oﬂ:l Clal Copg O f Scale 1:1250 enlarged from 1:2500 ﬁ %
Ude Dla n Administrative area Kent: Canterbury m

‘@CrM\Copy?ghL Pro\cuoedtvyLand Registry, Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance Survey. Licence Number 100026316.
* w
\ \ .|

oBEN0D i 8]

yoyeq pio eul

s}

Barham CE
Primary

B S S

School




APPENDIX E:
BARHAM COUTI | Letter of consent from Barham Court

Farms

CHURCH LANE, BARHAM, CANTE
TELEPHONEQ122°

7th December 2007

Barham Parish Council
Mrs.L.J.Davies

Chair Parish Council
16 The Grove

BARHAM

Canterbury

Kent CT4 BPP

Dear Linda

Ref: Right of Way on Village Green

Thank you for your letter of 30th November 2007 regarding the
above subject.

We have no objection for our comsent to be given to include the
Right of Way in the registration of the Village Green, which

we donated to the village in 1856, assuming that this is no way
detracts from our right of way too.

- Please get back to us if we have overlooked anything in your
letter. Ue are glad to continue to do something for the village.

Yours sincerely

o
S
I P\
% Keith Groombridge &0Y Ce?me of®
Partner \Ne'ﬂex o™y i (“‘"JJ\
:
ai‘u an - -
ey
P
‘Néwﬂ“ﬂe

VAT REs. No. 201 2301 51

K.G., D.J. & R.T.GROOMBRIDGE

PatidA7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda ltem 4
Item 4

Application to register land at Huntington Road, Coxheath
as a new Village Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Monday 11" February 2008.

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that
the application to register the land at Huntington Road, Coxheath has been accepted,
and that the land subject to the application be formally registered as a Village Green.

Local Members: Mrs. P. Stockell Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Huntington
Road, Coxheath as a new Village Green from local resident Ms. K. Hodgkiss (“the
applicant”). The application, dated 29" March 2006, was allocated the application
number 590. A plan of the site is shown on Appendix A to this report and a copy
of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. This application has been made under section 13 of the Commons Registration
Act 1965 and regulation 3 of the Common Registration (New Land) Regulations
1969. These regulations came into force on the 3™ January 1970, and regulation
3 enables the making of an application where, in accordance with section 22 of
the 1965 Act, after the 2" January 1970 any land becomes a Town or Village
Green.

3. Although the Commons Registration Act 1965 has now been replaced by the
Commons Act 2006, because this application was received prior to the coming
into effect of the new 2006 Act, it must be dealt with under the former legislation.

4. For the purpose of this application, therefore, section 22 of the 1965 Act (as
amended by section 98 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) applies.
It defines a Village Green as:
land on which for not less that twenty years a significant number of the
inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood within a locality,
have indulged in lawful sports and pastimes as of right, and either:
(a) continue to do so, or
(b) have ceased to do so for not more than such period as may be
prescribed, or determined in accordance with prescribed
provisions'.

5. As a standard procedure set out in the regulations, the County Council must notify
the owners of the land, every local authority and any other known interested
persons. It must also publicise the application in the press and put up a site
notice. The publicity must state a period of at least six weeks during which
objections and representations can be made.

P4gk 19



The Case

6.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of a
rectangular area of grassed open space situated within a residential housing
estate. It is surrounded on three sides by Huntington Road and on the fourth side
by a tarmaced path which serves property numbers 11 to 27 (odd numbers only)
Huntington Road. However, the electricity sub-station located on the north-
eastern corner of the site does not form part from the application and would have
to be excluded from any potential registration of the land as a Village Green.

. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has

become a village green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for lawful sports and pastimes ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years.

Included in the application were 11 user evidence questionnaires from local
residents asserting that the application site has been available for free and
uninhibited use by local residents for lawful sports and pastimes over the last
twenty years and beyond. Also included as part of the application was a copy of a
recent planning application concerning the land as well as photographs showing
use of the application site. A further 15 statements of use were also submitted by
the applicant during the course of the investigation process.

Consultations

9.

Consultations have been carried out as required and no objections to the
proposal have been received. As a result of the consultation, 13 letters of support
were received from local residents describing their knowledge of the application
site and further adding to the evidence of use which was submitted with the
original application. The Coxheath Parish Council also wrote to express its strong
support for the application on the grounds that the land in question has been used
by local residents for many years.

Landowner

10.The application site is owned by the Maidstone Housing Trust, which has been

11

contacted as part of the consultation process. In February 2006 (prior to the
Village Green application being submitted), the Trust applied for planning
permission for the erection of 6 terraced houses with a new access road.
However, this application was refused by Maidstone Borough Council in April
2006 on the grounds that the proposal would be detrimental to the character of
the area, that it would result in the loss of an important green space used for
recreation and that the design of the properties was not appropriate for the area.

.A copy of the application and relevant documentation has been sent to the

Maidstone Housing Trust and, after careful consideration, the Trust has confirmed
that it has decided not to oppose the application.

Legal tests

12.1n dealing with an application to register a new Village Green the County Council

must consider the following criteria:

P4de 20



(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

(e) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
registration?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:

(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

13. The definition of the phrase ‘as of right’ has been considered in recent High Court
case law. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell’ case, it is now considered
that if a person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy
or permission (nec vi, nec clam, nec precario), and the landowner does not stop
him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired
and further use becomes ‘as of right’.

14.In this case, there is no evidence of any of the witnesses ever having been
verbally challenged or physically prevented from gaining access to the land. Nor
is there any suggestion that the use of the land has been secretive or could have
gone unnoticed. From the user evidence submitted, the land appears to have
been in regular usage since the housing estate was first built in the 1950s;
indeed, the fact that the land in question serves as a focal point for the
surrounding houses makes it an obvious place for local residents to congregate
and recreate.

15.In the absence of any information to the contrary from the landowner, | am
satisfied that the use of the land has not been with force, with secrecy or with
permission during the requisite 20 year period (1986 to 2006).

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

16.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. Legal principle does not require that
rights of this nature be limited to certain ancient pastimes (such as maypole
dancing) or for organised sports or communal activities to have taken place;
solitary and informal kinds of recreation are equally as valid.

17.In this case, the evidence demonstrates that a wide range of recreational
activities have taken place on the land (such as picnics, dog-walking and ball-
games). Included at Appendix C is a table summarising evidence of use by local
residents which shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken place.

18.In addition to the large number of adults who have used the land, a number of
statements of use have been received from children (under the age of 18) who
have used the land as a meeting place to socialise with friends, play games or

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex p. Sunningwell Parish Council (2001)

P44 21



engage in sporting activities. This evidence supports the general use of the land
as a Village Green by the whole community.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

19.The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 inserted a new section dealing with

locality into section 22 of the 1965 Act. It should now be shown that the use made
of the land has been and continues to be inhabitants of any locality, or of a
neighbourhood within a locality. The use need not be exclusively by local
inhabitants, but they should be the significant number.

20.In this case, the applicant has helpfully provided a plan showing the area within

21.

which users of the land reside (attached at Appendix D) and, at Part 3 the
application form, has defined the locality as ‘Huntington Road, Coxheath’.

The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been
the subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be
applied. In the Cheltenham Builders? case, considered that “...at the very least,
Parliament required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that
could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a
sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. He later went on to
indicate that this could mean that the locality should constitute ‘some legally
recognised administrative division of the county’.

22.In this case, | consider that Huntington Road is too narrow a definition to

accurately reflect the threshold of use. Indeed, if the entirety of the users of the
land only resided in Huntington Road, then this may be insufficient to constitute a
locality in the sense in which Parliament intended it to apply. However, in this
case, although use is generally from those whose homes are situated
immediately opposite the land, there is evidence from people living in surrounding
roads. There is also evidence to suggest that the land is used (albeit perhaps
occasionally) by those living in the wider Coxheath area. | therefore consider that
the correct locality is the administrative parish of Coxheath.

23.In terms of the ‘significant number issue, this was considered in the McAlpine

Homes® case, in which it was held that significant did not necessarily mean
considerable or substantial: Sullivan J stated that what matters is that the number
of users has to be sufficient to indicate that “their use of the land signifies that it is
in general use by the local community for informal recreation, rather that
occasional use by individuals as trespassers”.

24 1t is clear from the summary provided at Appendix C that use of the land has not

been insignificant. Although some of the users have not stated their frequency of
use, it is clear from the accounts provided by others that the land has been in
general use by local on a regular basis. This is supported by the 11 user evidence
forms and 15 statements of use and is further supplemented by the letters of
support which indicate general use by the community for informal recreation: one
letter described how ‘on summer evenings, as many as 30 children would be

’R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council (2003)
°R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council (2002)

Pde 22



seen playing on the green [which] included many children from other parts of
Coxheath’, whilst another confirms that use has been observed ‘on a daily basis’.
| am therefore satisfied that use of the land in this case has been by a significant
number of inhabitants of a particular locality.

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

25.The ‘usergram’ at Appendix E shows that there is evidence of use from the
witness statements dating back as far as 1951 (when the housing estate was
built). Twelve of the witnesses have used the land for at least 20 years, with
another asserting nineteen years’ use. A further 23 witnesses have also used the
land during the requisite period but for a period of less than 20 years. It does not
matter that some people have used the land for less than 20 years provided that
the user evidence, when considered as a whole, shows general use over a 20
year period. This is clearly the case here, as illustrated by the usergram.

26.1t is therefore evident that use has taken place for a full period of at least twenty
years, with some witnesses attesting to use over a far longer period.

(e) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application?

27.The recent amendment made by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000
required that use of the claimed green continues up until the date of registration
‘as of right'. However, partly in response to the large number of village green
applications which were being defeated simply because landowners were
erecting fences or notices at the last minute prior to the determination of
applications affecting their land, this requirement was overturned by the House of
Lords in the Oxfordshire* case. It is now held that use need only take place up
until the date of application and not necessarily continue to the date of
registration.

28.In this case, the open nature of the site means that people need only step onto
the application site from a public highway without meeting any barriers or
obstructions. The only way in which access could be prevented is to fence the site
in its entirety: no mention is made of this ever having happened by any of the
witnesses and there is no evidence of the remains of any fencing visible on the
site itself. | am therefore satisfied that use of the land by the local inhabitants did
continue up until (and beyond) the date of application.

Conclusion
29.From close consideration of the evidence submitted, | have concluded that all the

legal tests concerning the registration of the land as a Village Green (as set out
above) have been met.

* Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council and Catherine Mary Robinson (2006)

P4y 23



Recommendations

30.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the application to
register the land at Huntington Road, Coxheath has been accepted, and that the
land subject to the application be formally registered as a Village Green.

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent.gov.uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site
APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence
APPENDIX D — Map showing the locality
APPENDIX E — ‘Usergram’ showing period of use

PAde 24




AN APPENDIX A:
S W, \5' | PLAN SHOWING APPLICATION SITE
i
A
57 E
o =
N
Land subject to 7
W : | Village Green application !
at Huntington Road, /
! Coxheath /
Scale 1:2500

P4gé 25




CR FORM 30 Official stamp of registration authority

indicating date of receipt Application No. 5 90
S REGISTRATION ACT 1965 : .
G%Nm cou COUNCH. Register Unit No(s)
REGISTRATION AUTHORITY s
13 APR 2006
VG
This SECHGHIO? Q:-.r:bs'utl
use only
COMMONS REGISTRATION ACT 1965

SECTION 13

! insert name of
registration authority

APPLICATION FOR THE REGISTRATION OF
LAND WHICH BECAME A TOWN OR VILLAGE
GREEN AFTER 2™ JANUARY 1970

|
Tothe ' |\ee=piT CoOura T Cosasdeil

Application is hereby made for the registration as a
town or village green of the land described below,
which became so registrable after 2 January 1970.

Part 1

(Give Christian names

or forenames and surname

or, in the case of a body corporate
or unincorporate, the full title of the
body. If part 2 is not completed all
correspondence and notices will be
sent to the first named applicant),

Name and address of the applicant or (if more than
one) of every applicant

EATE HobaxisS
A2 puwTinGTesd Roads
COOHEATH
M AN ST TE
eErST
MEIT Shs~f

Part 2

{This part should be

completed only if a solicitor

has been instructed for the

purposes of the application.

If it is completed, all correspondence
and notices will be sent to the
solicitor)

Name and address of solicitor, if any.

N

Pde 26



Part 3 Particulars of the land to be registered, i.e. the land

claimed to have become a town or village green

Name by which usually known e ; st

Locality HusdTird G TN EohS | CORRERTH |

M AN T=TOorDT, Eendl sl
Colour on plan herewith

H&ToHets BEuue

Part 4 On what date did the land become a town or village

green?

'S MARCH odo .

Part 5

How did the land become a town or village green?

B THE ACTUAL USE CF THE LAMD To BE fEaISTEEED
2N THE Lot IMPRARRITANTS FeR CAeroai- =FoE TS
Arils DRETIPAES /S of BliaT FOR. hoeE T D
TWENTY YEARS .

Part 6

Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, leasee, tenant or occupier of
any part of the land claimed to have become a town or
village green (if none are known, write 'none’)
MAESTODE  HOouSindE TRUST LenTeED
WHATMARN House | ST LEONARD'S RoAD

ALLINGTON , MmassSToNE, kendT MEIe OLS

Part 7

For applications to register substituted land (see Note
5); to be disregarded in other cases.

Particulars of the "taken land"” i.e. the land which ceased
to be a town or village green (or part thereof) when the
land described in part 3 became a town or village green
{or part)

Name by which usually known

Locality N [ A

P4y 27



Colour on plan herewith (if any)

If registered under the 1965 Act, register unit No(s)

Part 8 List of supporting documents sent herewith, if any.
(If none are sent, write "none")

EVIiENCE QUESTICNNMEES + SIGNED MAP )
- ProOlo&Genras

s SUPPCETING LETTERS | NoTES
LA B

Part 9 _ If there are any other facts relating to the application
which ought to be brought to the attention of the
registration authority (in particular if any person
interested in the land is believed to dispute the claim
that it has become a town or village green) full
particulars should be given here. (Continue on the back
if necessary)

e Al APPLICATION FoE PLARNMING PERnisSionN BAS
BEEN PMADE B MMDSTONE HOousSING TRRAST D
TeEveELOR PART OF THE LAND To B CecisTte=D
A CoE-l OF PLANRTNINGE AFPUCATION TR e —
MA/ob| oIS 'S EncLosSEDS .

e T EASE SEE ErNCLOSED CONERING LETTER .

P&y 28



2If the application must be signed Date

..........................................................

by or on behalf of each individual
applicant, and by the secretary or some Signatures >

other duly authorised officer of any
applicant which is a body corporate

or unincorporaie

................................................

(See MNote 9) STATUTORY DECLARATION IN SUPPORT

To be made by the applicant, or by one of the
applicants, or by his or their solicitor, or, if the
applicant is a body corporate or unincorporale, by its
solicitor or by the person wha signed the application.

! Insert Jull name fand L! eATE HolxEGSE\Ss
address if not given in solemnly and sincerely declare as follows:-
the application form)
Delete and adapt as
necessary )
?Insert name if applicable 1.2 1 am [(the person {ene-ef-the-persens) who (has)

fhavey signed the foregoing application) Frhreseteitorte

2. | have read the Notes to the application form.

3. The facts set out in the application form are to the

best of my knowledge and belief fully and truly stated

and I am not aware of any other fact which should be

brought to the attention of the registration authority as

likely to affect its decision on this application, not of

any document relating to the matter other than those (if

any) mentioned in parts 8 and 9 of the application, —

YInsert "marking" as on plan 4. The plan now produced and shown to me nmrked"‘_FL_'H ~N &
is the plan referred to in Part 3 of the application,

rand-ard

*Delete this paragraph 55 The plan-new-produced and-shewnto-m markced -
if there is no plan ; i bedEheT
referred to in Part 7
And I make this solemn declaration, conscientiously believing the same to be true, and
by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1833.

P4déd 29



Declared by the said . Ko, RCISCISS)
P buDETorTE | CevsT MENVTT

at . SASEeC R ST, OIS 4 . TR E
e R L | ey e — L=

Address ... SLEREREET Hmeas S
&2

Qualification e AR ITE A e e SIS v g, g

REMINDER TO OFFICER TAKING DECLARATION:
Please initial all alterations and mark any plan as an exhibit.

P&y 30




P44é 31



LINTOM CP b
u T

] 3 .
T ' : — - —
o 1002 feer D Mie -
| Scale 1:25 000 | ] o0
. Firirigg and beat ranges in tha area. Danger! Otsenve warming notices GEMERAL FEATURES 4:;' / L
il { Charnps gn t at d'essal Dangor] Sa canformer s avertissements - ARCHAED
- Soriinn i By A T e [ ]m:v1m1mm S 3 g Pl
& | placas of worship Mmmiza.mu i
mi\\j E - Hmnh:rd‘h A

o W60 Site

P&y 32



I LE MUMBER

K868106
KENT : MAIDSTONE

Al

ORDMANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE: TQ73IS1S5E | SCALE: 1:1250

CC RO COPTRICHT, Produds by HMLRL Further reprodisction in whole or in part is prohibited withowt the prior written permissban of Ordnance Survey. Licance Mumbet COIFITIE.
Hote Tha hrn_-dlumd prean i ot included in this trke

£ % | ! { i o > f = i: PR T I A |
| ' | | e o S e e ! /’/ R ey NS

| =

—
)

fof
f g

.

g

—

IT__
|

| BERRY & B%HF‘.&YN .
SUENCREST HOUS

AT e e D
=T e BT L

o _'

~ ld

MAIDST

(Bh=g)
T s B T o JSEVEIRRED o ™ plisady e S
S’»‘-f-.,lulm:) L . ,é;- EATE HoDaECIsS
This Official Copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page. qu\bﬁ .‘é.. WW(L— Q-Wﬁ% l ﬁ

.
e
ONE

P4gé 33




Appendix C: Table summarising user evidence

uaipjiyo 13150}

0g “xoudde yym Buoje puej au) peoy b
uo pake|d uaipjiyd uMQ "siseq jiep 2008 | uoyBupuny 0 "SI
© UO pue| 3yl |0 8sn panasqo aAeH pajels JoN palels JoN palels 10N | - 4261 ty g7 pue

peoY
anoz | uoibujuny SN2E4
BUON pajels JoN lieqioo) Aejd o} Auiepy | — 0002 i 15 0N
Buiyem
10} Aeam
M) E 25N
mop “sfepiioy
ﬁﬂosum
Buunp uayo peoy uung
AU 'URIPIILD 900z | ieddading M CSIN
auoN | uum Aaam asiosoxa Joj Buniiem | - LI6L oL | §1+43n pue "I
shepijoy peay
pue| aij} uo |[ooyos vosl | Jeddedinn yung
aoejd %00] suaneiqajao aajanl Jens Buunp Aluew uaipjiyo yym Bukeld | — 8S61 9 43n TSI
. pECH
lleqiooy £00Z | uoiBununy ueaung
SUON pajels 1oN ‘Buipu-ajofo ‘Bunjem |  —z661 92 15 'd IN
peoy
2002 | uoiBuiuny uBIung
aUoN pajeis jop | Bupjrem ‘jjeqioo) ‘Bupu-ayig | — 2661 ae 15 T ssIN
peocy
spods 200z | umBununy uojuag
auoN pajels 1oN Ialio pue jexoun ‘leqood | — £002 6l 15 9 SW
UoNExEal pUE
uolealoal [eiaual ‘spusily 9002 250}0) sulj00
auoN pajes joN Bugeaw ‘seweb leg | - /861 | uowD €l 1S ‘1IN
sasodind
[eugealoal ‘saweb 2002 peOH sullieD
SUON palels 1oN suaipiyo ‘Bupjem-Bog | —+261 | uoising €1 e NI
“UBURIYD (20 . suog
£ pasn Ajapim s pue eoed Buye) ‘aja Buiyem ‘sawed 1002 peoy T sy
salmae jo afiurl epIM PaAIasgo Sey auoN palels JoN guaippuo ‘Buem-Bog | —-ps6L | uoising gl g+ 1S puE "Iy
peoy
£00Z | uoBununy PIIya-3o0ig
auoN palels Jop 184010 "siepunol ‘|[eqioo4 - 002 cl 15 M SN
£35N OL
S1N3HH3 130 3sn 40 asn 40 JONIAIAT
SINIWWOD | /STONITIVHD | ADNINDIHA S3AILIAMLDOY | 0Id3d | S53HAAVY | 40 3dAL JNYN

P&Ye 34



uaJpiu peoYy
BUBI(] pue ypm Buifeid *(Bunyew uojBuiunH
sapey) Buippam ay) Joj pue as)ign! auim Joy) sucapuep LE6L | o uapisay Jabuoid
18A15 3y} up aaejd YoOo] SUo|RIqalaD BUON sfep 150l Buyoid ‘saiped j9ang | - €561 laiio 4an T s
uoljealoal peoY
[esaualb ‘||egloo) 'spual) 002 | uoBununy I21sENOW
auop pale]s Jop Buneaw ‘sBop Buisiolexg | - 8661 8z 15 d I
"SyJUOLW Jawwns Buunp
A|jeioadsa ‘asn JUE|SUOD JSowW(e proy ey
Ul 51 pue BaJe [220] In0 ul Ajuaue uaIpY J00z | uoifununy asip
panjea pue juepoduw) Ue S| pue| 8y] pojels JoN pajels 10N yum Butkeid ‘uonesiosy | - 6861 4 S puE “JN
9002 as0[D LGN
BUON pajeis JoN | sewnsed pue suods |njme|, | — 0002 | UoWD 0} 15 'S 'S
9002 asojp Aguayian
BUON pajels 1oy | sowijsed pue spods |ngmel, | — 0002 | uolid Ot 15 WU
peoY
agoz | uoiBununy BpUET
auoON Ajuejsuog Bupiem | - 1661 98 43N "9 "SIN
spuai Bupaaw ‘Buipu as50[) uosdop
auon Palejs JoN -39 "||eqioo} ‘Buiem 2002 LUoUID 6 15 "H "ssIN
pedy
Bunyjem-Hop £00Z | uoibununy sspBpoH
BUON PalEls JON ‘aaqsid Bukeid ‘Gupjepy | - 002 el 15 M SN
i peoy
UBIpJILD Yum L002 | uoibununy S842IH
BUON pajels 10N saweb (jeq ‘Guuen-Bog | - 8661 82 1S “H 'S
002
— 8661
uay} peoy
pUB| 8y uo (Aluo Jawwns) ‘erel | woiBununy uuaT) "SIy
20ed %00} SUOIIRIGa|D 8a)ign| Jan|IS BLON Aleq | siuus) ‘Buiyem-Gop ‘sawey | - Go6L ZE 43n pue I
pedH
000z | woiBununy
auaN pajels o [[EQI00] 'sanajuy | = SB61 S 15| o4 'd''W
“puE| ay] pasn aney ualpjiyopuelb
-jealb pue uaup|IyIpUEBIL) "UlBaUXOD)
jo sped Jayjo wioj asou) ‘[oul ‘'uaalb
) uo Buifed usip|iyo OF se Auew se
panasgo aaeys Bujuaas 1Iswwuns uQ peoy
"JALIWNS U Ul 1842110 pUe JaluiM auy) sbop Buisiniaxa 900z | uojbununy
Ui ||2qio0j 10} pUE| pasn usupjlyd umg aUDN shep jsopy ‘uaipiiuo uum Bukerd | - 1961 Sk 15| ¥04 M IN

P4géd 35



-a1e saluaid ‘Buisijeioos ‘BuioAs ‘siapunol ‘[legabipop 184012 ‘||BqI00) SB YINS SBllIAIIOR JO) SIEBA JUBIDI J9AL
puej ayj Jo asn niay) Buipesse (g} 10 8be 8y Japun) USIP|IYD WOIJ PBAISO3) BI8M SJUSLIBIEIS §| J8UYun} B ‘aA0QE B} 0} UOLIPPE U]

(ssaoosd uoneynsuod ayy Buunp paiisoal) woddns jo 1ejle = S
asn JO JuaWaleIS = |S
(aneuuonsanb) wioj souspiAg 185N = 43N

Bop Buisioiaxs 'saureb agoe asan HBlooM
BUON Aep fiaag | pue siuua) 'jexouo ‘|leqiood | — 1S6E | uolunD ‘i 43n 'O U

Bufed uaipjuo Aq peOY
85N panasqo sey — peoy uojbuiuny 2002 I{PEENE=T Y (e Taf=T0
lo} uewyisod |B90| 8y} Ajualiny pajels JoN palels 1oN piyo e se Bukeld | - /61 g a1 H "IN

lawwns uaIp|iy2 ynam Buife)d
auy) Buunp ‘Buiyem-Gop ‘Buisioiexe

aa)ign| ey) pue g51 W aI0W “JSUIM ‘Buiyjem ‘saiped 'souoid peOY
1130 JO UONBUOIOY) 8L JO SUOIRIGE|SD Ul Haam ‘(siapuno’ "Jexouo fra) gp0z | uoiBuiuny N |
abie||n 10| pasn SEM Uaalg) auop | Jad saung-Z saweb jeuwuoyu Bukeld - LG61 vl 43N 5 SIN

Aued Buippam eueig
pUE S3JIBYT) SB ||9M SB £56 | Ul 818y} peoYy Jaumo |
aoe|d yoo) Aped uojeuoio) 'uaalb saned snoues ‘Buyem-Gop onoz | uoBununy "4 "SI
ayj uo Aejd oym usipjiyopueib g} seH SUON fep Alang | ‘uoneassal jeiouab ‘sawen | - 0S6| Z 43n pue W
Aj|BUCISE20

Ajuo mou 85007 '|IIH laumo |
‘JabBunok uaym 800z | 85007 PIO Vs
auoN Aep fuang Buiyem-Bop ‘'sewes) | —g9/61 | ‘episfuung 43n pue A

Jallling peoy
8] Ul aJow gooz | uwoiBununy suagoy
BUON ‘sallj9-g Busem | - LG6I 17 43N 3 "SI

PEY2 36



APPENDIX D:

MAP SHOWING THE LOCALITY WITHIN
WHICH USERS OF THE LAND RESIDE
{Application site is shown hatched)

a7a;
]
=
~
-
-
I~
i
[
1
1
i
i
i
n 1 E?
LI
I o
i
=t 8740
1 L
[ 1
by i
T o |\ |
[ i '
| RN AT
Y Elasz
I._fr . Tty 3 :I‘-
B s i W
. i
““““ &l - I P = (R
sadd ey ] ;Of:x i E
Tl { B e
P ||I l'.i II
"\‘ ! .-F %] :
5 =0 1
8 \Vh 24 Gl o2
i
‘,' ""rl D :
e i
I i, '--.E__- |:
s i i i =
: — P |
fizd
e - P .." = b -..__s,:g____',ﬁ
ai M T, N i ‘2""-.. - _’l :”:_-
B L i D 5 Egr—— 40 i
P F ) o By | P
. = ,]J’ .r‘:_ i i
i { el 2l
i 1
il egil
W f i Pk
L] Cr U Fa [ § B s
add i £l e o m
o y oty ©
"it 1 —
& i
ik
[
[
11
L
1
i
i
5
a A
P yi 57!
H
o
" - - § =3 &
& i i =] I} v
o e m
] n o
0 2 i
0 -

P4gé 37




inyMe| Jo} anis uofeaydde sy Buisn eq s flam fiews fiay) sesed jsow ) jeu) pabpa)
.Es_,_ gouapIRa 18l 8YEp 841) 9002 |1un dn aq o} pajels S| sessaum g 8sn "9002 - 9861 S!

‘sawysed pue spods

mouyoe g i ‘JanemoH "(paubiis aiai sjUBLLBIE]S JSU) alEp e} £00z Jo (paubis asam

pousd [2psiew, Jeaf Auawm au) sny) pue 9002 S| uofEaydde jo 81ep 8uL

seloN
8002 - 1561 U0/ "D "IN
500z - 1561 _—
8002 ~ =6 | FBUME] ‘S SIN + I
mn__u.m._u 9.6l JBUMOL Y "SI + I
900z - 1561 U
1661 - cgal JBuoig T 5

7002 - 8661 SSISEINON "d I |
2002 — 661 S
5002 - 0002 Aqpeuie 'S S
900z ~ 000z fyouie "
9002 - 1561 BOUE] "D 'SU
S uosdor *H ‘SSi
 Lovz S0 sspBPOH N 'S
1002 - 966} _ SONOIH “H S
5002 - 8661 P
LA x4 °d N
5002 - 1961 e
5002 — 0002 T
3002~ 126+ uung “ A SI + I
) jung Sy
100¢ - cael eound 4 I
Gt ueoung T “SSIA
7002 - 6002 P
9002 - 2361 |4 SUloD "L N
1002 - 716} [ A
7002 - PL61 [ WD TN
1002 - 1002 [aae): PIS-HO0IE " "SI
SB[ 90| 0| tD| £0| 20| L0 | GO | 66 REAEIEE 6| 16| 06 I8 e

P&ge 38



	Agenda
	3 Application to register land at Valley Road, Barham as a new Village Green.
	4 Application to register land at Huntington Road, Coxheath as a new Village Green.

